
 

 

 

HUMBOLDT GENERAL HOSPITAL 

 

 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 

 

 

 

TUESDAY 

 

FEBRUARY 25, 2020 

 

5:30 P.M. 

 

 

SARAH WINNEMUCCA CONFERENCE 

ROOM 

 

 

 



 
 

HUMBOLDT GENERAL HOSPITAL 
118 EAST HASKELL STREET 

WINNEMUCCA, NEVADA  89445 
 
 
 

DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
 

MEETING DATE: Tuesday February 25, 2020 
MEETING TIME: 5:30 pm 
MEETING PLACE: Sarah Winnemucca Conference Room 
 Humboldt General Hospital 
 118 E Haskell St, Winnemucca, Nevada 
PLACES POSTED: in Winnemucca, Nevada at: 
 Humboldt General Hospital, 118 E Haskell Street 
 Humboldt County Courthouse, 50 W Fifth Street 
 Winnemucca City Hall, 90 W Fourth Street 
 Humboldt County Library, 85 E Fifth Street 
 United States Post Office, 850 Hanson Street 
 www.hghospital.org https://notice.nv.gov 
PERSON POSTING: Alicia Wogan 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT 

(This agenda item is designated to give the general public the opportunity to address the Hospital 
Board. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on an 
agenda for action. Public comment is generally limited to three (3) minutes per person.) 

 
C. MEDICAL STAFF-HOSPITAL DEPARTMENT REPORTS  
 (These agenda items are designated to give the opportunity to report and update the Hospital 

Board on each group or department listed. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under 
this section until it is placed on an agenda for action.) 
1. Medical Staff report – Chief of Staff 
2. Administration report  

a. CEO Report 
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 
 (The Board is expected to review, discuss and take action on this agenda item.) 

1. Board meeting minutes January 28, 2020. 
2. Medical Staff applications for appointments, reappointments, provisional and temporary 

privileges for: Laurie Parker, NP, Provisional-Family Practice; Kermit Brunelle, MD, Active-
Pediatrics; Craig Dates, MD, Active-Emergency Medicine; Michael Odom, MD, Active-
Hospitalist; Srikishna Vulava, MD, Active-Hospitalist; Quinn Lindstrom, DPM, Active-Podiatry; 
Paul Herman, MD, Active-Emergency Medicine; Leon Jackson, MD, Active-Radiology; 
Lawrence Shank, MD, Active-Orthopedic; Katrinka Kip, MD, Consulting-Pediatric Cardiology; 
Joseph Ludwick, MD, Consulting-Pediatric Cardiology; James Langevin, MD, Active-General 
Surgery; S. Curtiss Mull, MD, Active-Ortho Surgery.  
 

E. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
(The Board is expected to review, discuss and take action on this agenda item.) 
1. Cerner / Financial update 
2. Warrants disbursed - Monthly expenditures   
3. Budget Hearing update 
 

F. BUSINESS ITEMS-OTHER REPORTS  
(The agenda items in this section are for discussion and for possible action. The action may 
consist of approval, disapproval, acceptance, rejection, authorization, adoption, review, 

JoAnn Casalez - Chairman 
Michelle Miller - Secretary 
Bill Hammargren - Member 
Gene Hunt - Member 
Alicia Cramer - Member 
Ken Tipton - Member-Humboldt 
 County Commissioner 



DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
February 25, 2020 
Page 2 
 

recommendation, referral to staff, or any other action as appropriate. The items may be heard in 
any order and at any time unless a time is specified; two or more items may be combined for 
consideration; an item may be removed from the agenda; or, discussion relating to an item may 
be delayed at any time.) 
1. Hospital District / CEO recruitment update / Board of Trustees 
2. Hospital Administration / proposal to employ and enter into an employment agreement with 

Arthur Johnson, PA to provide physician assistant health care services / Administration  
3. Hospital Administration / proposal to enter into a contract with Sara Thorp, MD to provide 

newborn nursery coverage, C-section assistance coverage and Pediatric call coverage 
services / Administration 

4. Hospital Administration / proposal to enter into an employment agreement with Kirit Saigal, 
ARNP to provide psychiatric nurse practitioner services / Administration 

5. Hospital Administration / proposal to employ and enter into an employment agreement with 
Dan Lambert, PA to provide physician assistant health care services / Administration  

6. Hospital Administration / proposal to amend and extend agreement with Roger Brecheen, 
M.D., Arroyo Medical, Inc. to provide OBGYN services / Administration 

7. Hospital Administration / proposal to enter into agreement with Humboldt County to provide 
health care services for the Humboldt County Detention Facility / Administration 

8. Hospital Administration-Maintenance / proposal to authorize repair, replacement and possible 
relocation of the kitchen hood-exhaust systems on a time and materials basis at an estimated 
cost of $150,000 / Maintenance Director-Administration 

9. Hospital Administration-Maintenance / update on the pharmacy project-hood / Maintenance 
Director-Administration 

10. Hospital Administration / proposal to authorize five year term interlocal agreements and 
amendments to existing five year interlocal agreements with the Nevada Division of Health 
Care Finance and Policy for: payment of the outpatient supplemental payments at a cost not 
to exceed $5,076,036; payment of the total supplemental inpatient and outpatient upper 
payment limit payments at a cost not to exceed $9,251,303; increase the outpatient 
supplemental payments at a cost not exceed $3,957,348; and, increase the total 
supplemental inpatient and outpatient upper payment limit payments at a cost not to exceed 
$7,238,727 / Administration 

11. Hospital Administration-Respiratory / proposal to purchase pulmonary machine from 
PulmOne for $40,565 / Respiratory Director 
  

G. TRUSTEE COMMENTS-STAFF REPORTS 
(This period is designated for receiving reports, information, department updates, board and 
committee updates and proposals by the board, chief executive officer, chief financial officer, 
human resources director, director of nurses, and other staff upon request.  No action may be 
taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on an agenda for action.) 

 
H. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 (This agenda item is designated to give the general public an opportunity to address the Hospital 

Board.  No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this section until it is placed on an 
agenda for action.  Public comment is generally limited to three (3) minutes per person.) 

 

Notice:  The Executive Assistant at the Administrator’s Office located at Humboldt General Hospital, 118 E. Haskell 
Street, Winnemucca, Nevada, telephone number 775-623-5222 extension 1123, is the designated person from whom 
a member of the public may request the supporting material for the meeting and the Administrator’s Office is the 
location where the supporting material is available to the public. 

Notice: By law a public body may receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
involving a matter over which the public body has supervision, control, jurisdiction, or advisory power and such 
gathering does not constitute a meeting of the public body. 

Notice: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or accommodations at the meeting 
are requested to notify in writing the Executive Assistant at the Administrator’s Office located at Humboldt General 
Hospital, 118 E. Haskell Street, Winnemucca, Nevada 89445, or by telephoning 775-623-5222 extension 1123, at 
least one (1) business day in advance of the meeting. 



01/28/2020 Board Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 

HUMBOLDT GENERAL HOSPITAL 
DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

JANUARY 28, 2020 REGULAR MEETING    
SARAH WINNEMUCCA CONFERENCE ROOM 

 
 

BOARD PRESENT: 
Michelle Miller, Secretary 
Bill Hammargren, Member 
Gene Hunt, Member 
Alicia Cramer, Member  
Ken Tipton, County Comm. Member 
 
 
Kent Maher, Legal Counsel 
 
BOARD ABSENT: 
JoAnn Casalez, Chairman 
 
MEDICAL STAFF PRESENT: 
Rommel Adajar, MD 
Robert Johnson, PA 
Merleen Grover, APRN 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Karen Cole, Interim CEO 
Darlene Bryan, CNO 
Mike Bell, IT Director 
Kim Plummer, Controller 
Sandi Lehman, Special Projects Finance Director 
Theresa Bell, Materials Management Manager 
Dave Simsek, Pharmacy Manager 
Alicia Wogan, Executive Assistant 
Bertha Higbee, ED and Inpatient Manager 
Kelley Gentry, Interim CFO 
LeeAnn Cushway, CNO 
Tiffany Love, COO 
Janet Sturtz, Infection Control  
 
 

GUESTS:  
Ashley Maden (Humboldt Sun), Nicole Maher (Public Relations Director), Judy Adams (Auxiliary) and 
David Grover. 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
Board Secretary Miller called the January 28, 2020 board meeting to order at 5:33 p.m.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
There were no comments from the public. 
 
MEDICAL STAFF – HOSPITAL DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
 
Medical Staff report: 
There was no report.  
 
Administration Department reports: 
Interim CEO Cole reported on the following:  
 
Staff updates: Tiffany Love, COO, started January 13, 2020; and, Leeann Cushway, CNO, started January 
27, 2020. 
 
Physician-Clinic updates: Dr. Andrew Wesley, Pain Management clinic, had 48 patient contacts in 
January; Dr. Draper and Dr. Lindstrom, Podiatry clinic, had 98 patient contacts in January; the Sleep 

Kent
Not Approved



 

01/28/2020 Board Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

 

Medicine clinic equipment will be installed January 30, 2020; Dr. Subha Rajan, an FPOB provider, will 
start in April, and she has obtained the Nevada license and started relocation efforts; and, Dr. David 
Masuck, an FP provider, will start next fall.   
 
Physician recruitment: Brittani Smith, MD, FPOB, visited again in January; and, contact was made with 
Robert Crawford, MD, an FP provider, Ellen Ouellette, MD, an FPOB provider who will graduate in 2022, 
and Deepthi Ciddi, MD, a Nevada licensed Internal Medicine provider.  
 
Other providers: Arthur Johnson, PA, will start in the Walk-In Clinic; Raafat Khani, DO, and Pamela 
Sherwill-Navaro, NP, both locum providers, are currently providing services in the clinic; and, Tom 
Mouritsen, CRNA, has been hired to fill the third CRNA position.   
 
Staff recruitment: HR Director Didi Almendares will start February 13, 2020; Rachel Lara, RN, a seven-
year HGH employee, has accepted the Clinic Nurse Supervisor position; Kat Ourada, RN, a twenty-five 
year HGH employee has accepted the Interim OB Manager position; and, a recruiting firm has been 
retained to provide OR Manager candidates. 
 
Remodel project: The Pharmacy hood and pressurization issue is proposed to be solved by increasing 
the size of VAV box and ductwork; the PT and Cardiac Rehab remodel is going well; and, the Cafeteria 
work will begin after completion of PT remodel. 
 
Air Ambulance services: There was a meeting with the MedX AirOne flight crew representatives to 
clarify staffing issues; some facility needs in the flight crew house were addressed; and, the 
communications center closure is scheduled to occur in February.  
 
Long Term Care survey: The plan of correction for the clinical portion of survey was accepted; and, 
administration is awaiting clarification on some potential items of concern regarding the facility.  
 
Other: The Board mini retreat to discuss various matters affecting the district is scheduled for February 
28-29, 2020; and, the Western Regional Trustee Symposium is scheduled for June 10-12, 2020 in Reno, 
Nevada. 
 
No action was taken.  
  
CONSENT AGENDA: 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Miller to approve the consent 
agenda consisting of board meeting minutes for December 17, 2019 and the Medical Staff applications 
for appointments, reappointments, provisional and temporary privileges for: Rufus Ed Mohr, CRNA, 
Provisional-Anesthesia; Veronica Janhunen, MD, Active Staff-Pediatrics; Ajeet Mahendernath, MD, 
Active Staff-Emergency Medicine; Maryellyn Gilfeather, MD, Consulting Staff-Teleradiology; and, Peter 
Verhey, MD, Consulting Staff-Teleradiology.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS: 
Interim CFO Gentry presented: the November-December 2019 financial reports; the financial 
improvement plan; an update on the Cerner system; on-going training updates; an update on the long 
term care billing; an update on Hospital billing system and self-pay issues; and, the tentative calendar 
for the next fiscal year budget as follows: March 14, 2020 for the budget workshop; March 24, 2020 to 

Kent
Not Approved



 

01/28/2020 Board Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

 

consider proposed budget changes; April 15, 2020 to submit the tentative budget to the State; May 26, 
2020 for the public budget hearing; and, June 1, 2020 for submission of the final budget to the State.  
 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Cramer to approve the November 
and December 2019 financials, warrants, and disbursements as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS-OTHER REPORTS: 
1. Hospital Administration / proposal to employ and enter into an employment agreement with 
Brittani Smith, MD to provide family practice obstetrics physician health care services /   
Administration  
Motion by board member Hammargren second by board member Hunt to approve the employment 
agreement for Brittani Smith, MD, as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
2. Hospital Administration / proposal to enter into an employment agreement with Landon 
Mouritsen, CRNA to provide CRNA staff services  /  Administration 
Motion by board member Hunt and second by board member Hammargren to approve the employment 
agreement for Landon Mouritsen, CRNA as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
3. Hospital Administration / proposal to enter into an employment agreement with Tom Mouritsen, 
CRNA to provide CRNA staff services  / Administration 
Motion by board member Hunt and second by board member Tipton to approve the employment 
agreement for Tom Mouritsen, CRNA as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
4. Hospital Administration / proposal to appoint Janet Sturtz as Infection Preventionist / 
Administration 
Interim CEO Cole said new regulations require the Board to be aware of who will be overseeing the 
onsite infection control programs.  
 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Hunt to approve the appointment 
of Janet Sturtz as the Infection Preventionist. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
5. Hospital Administration  / proposal to appoint Cody Bright as Chair of the Antibiotic Stewardship 
Committee / Administration  
Interim CEO Cole said new regulations require the Board to be aware of who will be responsible for 
stewardship of antibiotics kept on the premises.   
 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Cramer to appoint Cody Bright as 
Chair of the Antibiotic Stewardship Committee. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
6. Hospital Administration / proposal to amend agreement with Roger Brecheen, M.D., Arroyo 
Medical, Inc. to provide OBGYN services for an extended term / Maintenance Director-Administration 
Board member Miller said she spoke with Board chair Casalez who suggested the matter be tabled.   
 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Hunt to table discussion and 
action on the proposal to amend the agreement with Roger Brecheen, M.D.-Arroyo Medical, Inc. Motion 
carried unanimously.  
 

Kent
Not Approved



 

01/28/2020 Board Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

 

7. Hospital Administration / proposals to amend employment agreements with Echo Mathews, APRN 
(benefits-compensation), Robert Johnson, PA-C (benefits-compensation), Veronica Janhunen, MD 
(benefits-compensation), Robert Westling, MD (benefits-compensation), Rommel Adajar, MD 
(benefits-compensation), Subha Rajan, MD (benefits) and David Masuck, MD (benefits) to eliminate 
payment for the healthcare benefits for persons other than the employed provider and to adjust the 
base compensation to account for the reduction in the benefits / Administration 
Board member Hammargren asked if adjusting the compensation to offset the elimination of healthcare 
benefits for persons other than the provider is acceptable. Interim CEO Cole indicated it is allowed and 
the fair market value of the provider compensation with the adjustment will not be exceeded.  
 
Motion by board member Hammargren and second by board member Cramer to amend the 
employment agreements (as indicated in the parentheses) with Echo Mathews, APRN (benefits-
compensation), Robert Johnson, PA-C (benefits-compensation), Veronica Janhunen, MD (benefits-
compensation), Robert Westling, MD (benefits-compensation), Rommel Adajar, MD (benefits-
compensation), Subha Rajan, MD (benefits only) and David Masuck, MD (benefits only) to eliminate 
payment by the employer of the healthcare benefits for persons other than the employed provider and 
to adjust (increase) the base compensation of the providers to account for the reduction in the benefits 
as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS-STAFF REPORTS:  
Board members Tipton and Miller expressed appreciation for the additions of the various providers over 
the past several months.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
There were no comments from the public. 
  
Board secretary Miller adjourned the January 28, 2020 meeting of the Humboldt County Hospital District 
Board of Trustees at 6:03 p.m. 
 
APPROVED:      ATTEST: 
 
 
              
JoAnn Casalez, Board Chairman    Alicia Wogan, Executive Assistant 

Kent
Not Approved



 Laurie Parker, NP is applying for initial appointment to Provisional Staff with privileges 

in Family Practice. She started 01/02/2020.  

 Quinn Lindstrom, DPM is applying for Provisional Staff with privileges in Podiatry. He 

was given Allied Health privileges on 10/22/2015.  

 Paul Herman, MD is applying for reappointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Emergency Medicine. He was given privileges on 04/24/2012.  

 Leon Jackson, MD is applying for reappointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Radiology. He was given privileges on 05/24/2005. 

 Lawrence Shank, MD is applying for reappointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Orthopedic. He was given privileges on 03/05/2019.  

 Katrinka Kip, MD is applying for reappointment to Consulting Staff with privileges in 

Pediatric Cardiology. She was given privileges on 06/14/2000.  

 Joseph Ludwick, MD is applying for reappointment to Consulting Staff with privileges in 

Pediatric Cardiology. He was given privileges on 12/20/2005.  

 James Langevin, MD is applying for reappointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

General Surgery. He was given privileges on 09/27/2016.  

 Sears Curtiss Mull, MD is applying for reappointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Orthopedic Surgery. He was given privileges on 03/12/2015.  

 Kermit Brunelle, MD is applying for initial appointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Pediatrics. He was given privileges on 03/05/2019.  

 Craig Dates, MD is applying for initial appointment to Active Staff with privileges in 

Emergency Medicine. He was given privileges on 08/08/2019.  

 Michael R. Odom, MD is applying for initial appointment to Active Staff with privileges 

as a Hospitalist. He was given privileges on 02/06/2019.  

 Srikishna Vulava, MD is applying for initial appointment to Active Staff with privileges as 

a Hospitalist. He was given privileges on 01/29/2019.  

 























































































































Respiratory Department 

Pulmonary Function Machine Purchase Request 

Background 

Pulmonary function tests (PFTs) are noninvasive tests that show how well the lungs are working. The 

tests measure lung volume, capacity, rates of flow, and gas exchange. This information can help your 

healthcare provider diagnose and decide the treatment of certain lung disorders (Johns Hopkins 

Medicine, 2020). 

The respiratory department is requesting to purchase a pulmonary function test machine. The exact age 

of the current machine is uncertain (approximately 10 years old) but it is at end of life and the vendor 

would not agree to a preventive maintenance contract beyond one year due to the life of the machine. 

The problem is that the staff complain that the machine always requires calibration and they do not 

know how to calibrate it. As a result, the staff don’t have confidence in the integrity of the machine to 

provide accurate test results and choose to cancel the testing. The staff also report this machine is a 

more difficult test for the patient because it requires the patient to hold their breath twice as long as the 

newer machines (14 seconds versus 7 seconds).  

Repair Costs 

Repair costs for the current machine range from $5,000 - $7,000 or more per visit with the one year 

service agreement that was offered. The out-of-pocket costs with service parts alone would range 

between $700 (umbilical) - $5,995 (engine replacement). The vendor has also informed us that if the 

machine fails then it is possible they would not have the parts to fix it, with or without the contract. 

Pulmonary Function Testing Revenue 

There were 45 PFTs total since 11/11/2019. There are 3 different kinds of tests: PFT Complete, PFT Pre 

and Post, and PFT Spirometry. Cerner data show Pulmonary Function Tests from 11/11/19-12/31/2019 

are 16 complete PTS at $60 for a total of $9,712. There were 29 PFTs (11 Pre and Post & 18 PFT 

Spirometry) at $607/each for total of $17,603. For the year of 2019 the revenue generated is estimated 

at $60,808. There are currently 18 individuals waiting for PFTs to be rescheduled.  

The quote includes instillation, training and a warranty for the first 5 years. What is not included are the 

E regulator or the K/H regulators. E tanks range from $140-210 and K tanks range from $240-395. These 

tanks are a recurring cost in which we will select a vendor to come and refill the tanks. The cost of the 

disposable mouth piece is approximately $3 per piece. 

Pulmonary Function Tests. Johns Hopkins Medicine, 2020. Retrieved from:  

https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/health/treatment-tests-and-therapies/pulmonary-function-tests 

 

https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/health/treatment-tests-and-therapies/pulmonary-function-tests


PulmOne Advanced Medical Devices, 444 Madison Avenue, 6th floor, NYC, NY 10022

 

Date: __________________

Customer Signature: __________________

                                                  

PulmOne Signature:  __________________

USD 38,565.00Grand Total

USD 38,565.00Deal Total

USD 4,900.00Deal Discount

USD 43,465.00Total Price

Filter price – 3$

MD SPIRO MIP/MEP $2,000 ADD ON (Total
$40,565)

General Notes

Wire transferPayment Method

brooke.salisbury@pulm-one.comEmailBrooke SalisburyPrepared By

118 e haskell st
winnemucca, NV 89445
United States

Billing Address

Humboldt General HospitalAccount Name

2/27/2020Expiration Date

00000283Quote Number

2/18/2020Created Date 

Product Quantity Sales Price Total Price

3-Liter Calibration syringe 1.00 USD 300.00 USD 300.00

Cart for MiniBox/MiniBox+ 1.00 USD 2,400.00 USD 2,400.00

DLCO Gas Regulator 1.00 USD 400.00 USD 400.00

MB+ Extended Warranty - 3-4-4 1.00 USD 9,315.00 USD 9,315.00

MiniBox+™ Starter Kit 1.00
USD

31,050.00
USD

31,050.00

Shipping, installation, onsite training, 100 filters, software upgrades and 1 year manufacturer's
warranty

1.00 USD 0.00 USD 0.00



PulmOne Advanced Medical Devices, 444 Madison Avenue, 6th floor, NYC, NY 10022

1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

1.  

2.  

3.  

 

TERMS & CONDITIONS

Acceptance of Terms: PulmOne Advanced Medical Devices Ltd. and/or its affiliates (“PulmOne”) agrees to sell to the person
(“Customer”) named in the purchase order (the “Order”) those products and/or services referenced in the Order (“Products”
and “Services” respectively), on and subject to these terms and conditions. No Order shall be binding on PulmOne until
accepted by PulmOne in writing.

Price and Taxes: Prices in the Order do not include applicable value added, excise, sales, use, transfer, or other similar taxes
which shall be borne solely by Customer. Unless otherwise specified in the Order, all prices are Ex Works, Israel (Incoterms,
2010). All amounts must be paid within the period referenced in the Order. PulmOne reserves the right to charge default
interest on all outstanding amounts due under any Order at a rate of 1.5% per month, compounded simply.

Title and Risk of Loss: Title to the Products shall pass to Customer after and subject to full payment for the Products is
received by PulmOne, however risk of loss shall pass to the Customer immediately upon delivery of the Products.

Acceptance and Inspection: All Products delivered must be examined by the Customer promptly upon receipt. Customer
shall notify PulmOne in writing within ten (10) days after such receipt of any discrepancies between Products received and
those ordered by Customer and any apparent defects or damage to the Products (inspection claims). PulmOne shall not be
obligated to consider inspection claims made after such 10 day period. If an Order includes initial demonstration of Product
functionality by PulmOne, Customer shall be deemed to accept the Products when functional testing by PulmOne
demonstrates that a Product conforms to the specifications in such Product’s operator manual.

Limited Warranty: All Products are warranted to be free of material defects in materials and workmanship for a period of 12
months beginning from the date Customer received the delivery of the Products (the “Warranty Period”). Customer’s sole
remedy in respect of a defective Product shall be to return the defective Product to PulmOne and receive a replacement
Product (fixed or new) in return, or a credit in respect of the defective Product. The cost of shipment of defective Products to
PulmOne shall be for the account of Customer, and the cost of return of the replacement Product shall be for the account of
PulmOne.  Without derogating from the foregoing, it is hereby clarified that this limited warranty does not extend to: (i)
nonconformities, defects or errors in the Products due to accident, abuse, misuse or negligent use of the Products or use in
other than a normal and customary manner and in normal and customary environmental conditions, or failure to follow
prescribed operating maintenance procedures, (ii) defects, errors or nonconformities in the Products due to modifications,
alterations, additions or Product changes not made or authorized to be made by PulmOne, (iii) normal wear and tear, or (iv)
damage caused by force of nature or act of Customer or any third party.  The Warranty Period may be extended by the
Customer by payment of an additional fee to PulmOne for such extended period, in an amount set by PulmOne from time to
time.

CUSTOMER’S REMEDY FOR BREACH OF WARRANTY AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED ABOVE CONSTITUTES PULMONE’S SOLE AND
EXCLUSIVE OBLIGATION AND WARRANTY AND CUSTOMER’S SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR DEFECTIVE PRODUCTS. THE
FOREGOING WARRANTIES ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AND OF ALL OTHER
OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES, CONTRACTUAL OR OTHERWISE, EITHER TO THE CUSTOMER OR TO ANY OTHER PERSON,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, WHICH ARE HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED AND WAIVED. 

Intellectual Property Rights. All intellectual property and other rights with respect to the Products, including, but not limited
to, all patents, trademarks, copyrights, service marks, trade names, technology, know how, moral rights and trade secrets, all
applications for any of the foregoing, and all permits, grants and licenses or other rights relating to the Products, both
registered and unregistered, owned and/or otherwise used by PulmOne and all goodwill related thereto (hereinafter, referred
to as the "IP Rights") are and shall remain at all times the sole and exclusive property of PulmOne. Customer will not have or
acquire any right, title or interest in or otherwise become entitled to any IP Rights by taking delivery of, making payment for
or otherwise using the Products. Customer must not reverse-engineer the Products or attempt to do so, or allow any person
or entity to do so. 

Services and Support: PulmOne provides standard maintenance service, repairs and support for the Product during the
Warranty Period at no additional charge to the Customer. These Services include telephone technical support, hardware
repairs, and software bug fixes. After the Warranty Period, such maintenance, repair, and support services may be provided
by PulmOne at its standard service rates.  PulmOne shall perform the maintenance and support services in a reasonable
timely, professional, and workmanlike manner using trained and qualified personnel capable of performing such services in
accordance with standards used in the industry.

Limitations of liability: The total cumulative liability of PulmOne arising out of or in connection with any Product Ordered by
Customer shall be limited to the purchase price paid by Customer for such Product. In no event shall PulmOne be liable for
indirect, incidental, special, consequential, or punitive damages, of any nature or kind whatsoever and under any theory of

 



PulmOne Advanced Medical Devices, 444 Madison Avenue, 6th floor, NYC, NY 10022

3.  

4.  

law (whether in contract, tort, or otherwise), including but not limited to loss of anticipated profits, loss of revenue, loss of
production, loss of business opportunity, downtime, loss of use of equipment or any installation, system or facility into
which PulmOne’s Products may be located, even if advised of the possibility of such damages in advance, and Customer will
hold PulmOne harmless from and against any and all such liability in excess of this amount. PulmOne shall not be liable for
any latent defects or any other defects that might appear after the lapse of the Warranty Period. Customer’s sole and
exclusive remedies for any damages or loss in any way connected with the provision of Services, shall be at PulmOne’s
option; (i) re-performance of the relevant Services; or (ii) return of an appropriate portion of any payment made by Customer
with respect to the applicable portion of the Services. 

Governing Law. The Order and these terms and conditions Order shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Israel. The parties agree to submit any dispute connected with or arising under any Order to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the competent courts in Tel-Aviv or the Merkaz Districts.

 




